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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

AT SEATTLE
PEDIGO PRODUCTS, INC., a Washington )
Corporation, and OR SPECIFIC, a Florida )
Corporation, )
)
Plaintiffs, ) CaseNo.
v ; COMPLAINT FOR PATENT
: ) INFRINGEMENT

KIMBERLY-CLARK WORLDWIDE, INC,, ) JURY DEMAND REQUESTED
a Delaware Corporation, )
)
Defendant. )

Plaintiffs Pedigo Products, Inc. (“Pedigo”) and OR Specific (“OR-S”), for their
complaint against defendant Kimberly-Clark Worldwide, Inc. (“K-C”), allege as follows:
I. NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is an action for patent infringement under 35 U.S.C. §271, ef segq.

2. This action arises out the infringing activities of defendant K-C, in
manufacturing, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing products that are covered by United
States Patent No. 6,091,102 (the “’102 patent”) assigned to Pedigo Products, Inc., and/or K-C’s
activities inducing others in the United States to infringe, or contributing to the infringement in

the United States of the 102 patent.
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II. PARTIES

3. Pedigo is a corporation organized under the laws of Washington and having a
principal place of business in Vancouver, Washington.

4. OR-S is a corporation organized under the laws of Florida and having a
principal place of business in Vancouver, Washington.

5.  K-C is, on information and belief, a corporation organized under the laws of
Delaware and having a principal place of business in Irving, Texas.

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6.  This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331 and 1338.

7.  This Court has personal jurisdiction over K-C because, on information and
belief, K-C regularly and systemically transacts business in, and has committed acts of
infringement (whether direct, contributory, and/or by inducement) in, this judicial district and
throughout the United States, importing, offering to sell, and selling infringing surgical
drapes to customers in the state of Washington.

8. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c)
and/or § 1400(b) because, on information and belief, K-C regularly and systemically transacts
business and has committed acts of infringement (whether direct, contributory, and/or by

inducement), and is causing injury to Pedigo, in this judicial district.

IV. PERTINENT FACTS
A. The Business of Pedigo and OR-S
9.  Pedigo is a family owned company, founded in 1947 by William R. Pedigo and
his son Richard. The father-son team began making three-legged stools for barbers and

beauticians in the family’s dirt-floored garage in Burbank, California. In the early 1950’s
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Pedigo formed a partnership with the developing UCLA Medical Center to develop stainless
steel products for use in hospitals. The company relocated the business to Vancouver, WA,
where it has been since 1993.

10. Pedigo manufactures stainless steel and chrome equipment for the healthcare
industry in its Vancouver, WA facility and sells its products to hospitals and other healthcare
providers throughout Washington, the United States, and the world. Pedigo’s Vancouver
facility employs over one hundred people.

11. One of Pedigo’s leading products is the “Space Station,” a multi-tiered surgical
table designed to hold surgical equipment in operating rooms.

12. In order to protect patients from infection, each time an operating room is used
an area free of micro-organisms, known as a sterile field, is created around the patient.

13. When a surgical table, such as the Space Station, is to be used in surgery, the
table is covered with a single-use, sterile surgical drape, which creates an aseptic barrier
between the non-sterile table and any instruments placed on the sterile surface of the drape.

14. Pedigo sells single-use, sterile surgical drapes specifically designed and
manufactured to fit its Space Station table.

15. OR-S is a wholly owned subsidiary of Pedigo.

16. OR-S manufactures multi-tiered stainless steel equipment tables for use in
operating rooms in the same Vancouver, WA facility as Pedigo. OR-S sells its products to
hospitals and other healthcare providers throughout Washington, the United States, and
worldwide.

17. OR-S sells single use, sterile surgical drapes specifically designed and

manufactured to fit its multi-tiered stainless steel equipment tables.
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B. The 102 Patent
18. On February 1, 2000, the United States Patent and Trademark Office issued the
"102 patent, entitled Drape for Multiple-Tiered Sterile Hospital Surface and Associate
Methods, to Dan L. Becker. A true and correct copy of the 102 patent is attached hereto as
Exhibit 1.

19.  On September 9, 2008, Mr. Becker assigned all rights in the 102 patent to OR-

20. On information and belief, K-C imports, manufactures, offers to sell and/or sells
drapes for multi-tiered surgical tables that infringe one or more claims of the *102 patent (the
“infringing drapes™).

21. Before filing the above-captioned suit, OR-S advised K-C that the surgical
drapes K-C was selling infringed the *102 patent, and requested that K-C discontinue its sale
of the infringing drapes.

22. K-C has not complied with OR-S’s request to cease its infringing conduct,
necessitating the filing of this lawsuit.

23. K-C’s acts of infringement have been without express or implied license by OR-

S, are in violation of OR-S’s rights, and will continue unless enjoined by this Court.

V. INFRINGEMENT OF THE °102 PATENT

24.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1
through 23 of this complaint as if fully set forth herein.

25. Defendant has infringed and continues to willfully infringe one or more claims
of the *102 patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) through (c).

26. Because of defendant’s acts of infringement, plaintiffs have suffered, are
suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable injury unless defendant is preliminary and
permanently enjoined from continuing its unlawful infringing conduct.
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27. As aresult of defendant’s willful infringement of the *102 patent, plaintiffs are
entitled to an award of compensatory and exemplary damages in an amount to be determined
at trial.

VI. JURY TRIAL DEMAND

28. Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury on all issues so triable.

VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs requests that a judgment be granted in its favor as follows:

A. That defendant K-C has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims
of the 102 patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) through (c);

B. That defendant K-C and all related parties (as defined in Fed.R.Civ.P. 65(d)) are
preliminarily and permanently enjoined from further infringement of the *102 patent pursuant
to 35 U.S.C. § 283;

C. That defendant K-C be ordered to account for and pay plaintiffs’ actual and
exemplary damages to compensate plaintiffs for defendant’s acts of willful infringement
pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;

D. That an order be entered directing the seizure and destruction of any infringing
accused surgical drapes that have been imported into the United States;

E. That this case be deemed exceptional and that plaintiffs be awarded their costs
and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285 and other applicable statutes; and
i
//

/1
/1
/1
1/
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F. That the Court grant such other and further relief as it may deem just and proper.

DATED: June 7, 2012

LANE POWELL pC

By s/Brian G. Bodine
Brian G. Bodine, WSBA No. 22414

By s/Julianne Davis
Julianne Davis, WSBA No. 15180

By s/Tiffany Scott Connors
Tiffany Scott Connors, WSBA No. 41740

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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(57] ABSTRACT

A sterile surgical drape is adapted to cover the surfaces of a
multiple-tiered table such as is typically used for holding
surgical instruments. Those drape sections (300,400) for
covering surfaces above the bottom surface (200) are fitted
s0 as to avoid impeding access to and visibility of those
surfaces immediately beneath. Clear sections (300) of the
drape are provided to extend between tiers for improved
visualization from behind the table. Cuffs in the flap top
section of the drape (410) are also provided for aiding
handling and draping of surgical table by hospital personnel.
Hook-and-loop fasteners (310) on the back of the clear
middle section (300) are provided to be mated to hook-and-
loop fasteners (312) on the under portion of the instrument
table.

30 Claims, 2 Drawing Sheets

)
\/\:&42
- :

I

€

M.

VYRR

AR



Case 3:12-cv-05502-BHS Document1l Filed 06/07/12

Page 9 of 15
U.S. Patent Feb. 1, 2000 Sheet 1 of 2 6,019,102
o
o
o~ N
< o p—
o RCN I
O N
o | e @
- 2
T )
= )
|
|
)
o P
'_ _____ A
]
|
|
|
|
|
|
I‘
2 h o
|
| .
= | < Q)
1 o )
o~ | N L
Z*—)\v] :
g |
l
!
|
|
|
|
|
|
|




Case 3:12-cv-05502-BHS Document 1 Filed 06/07/12 Page 10 of 15

U.S. Patent Feb. 1, 2000 Sheet 2 of 2 6,019,102

410 100

7~ 410

404 U404

406 400 408

. |

402’ ! ST
L} t

0 , ,
3qg‘ //////////[}Q. 310 208

.
e ? 304
] ]

22 | : 212
214 216\~k_J i i [;J\—218 214
N |/

N ¥ ¥
202
AN
202
206 200 7]
\ — 208
)
204-)

FIG. 2



Case 3:12-cv-05502-BHS Document 1 Filed 06/07/12 Page 11 of 15

6,019,102

1

DRAPE FOR MULTIPLE-TIERED STERILE
HOSPITAL SURFACE AND ASSOCIATE
METHODS

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Field of the Invention

The present invention relates to sterile surface covers,
and, more particularly, to drapes for instrument tables in
operating rooms.

2. Description of Related Art

In hospital operating rooms, areas that are sterile and
nonsterile are carefully delineated. Typically a surface that is
to hold instruments, such as a metal table, is covered by a
sterile drape such as are known in the art. The surface of the
table itself is considered nonsterile, being made sterile by the
application of a drape. Any area below the draped surface is
also considered nonsterile.

Fitted drapes are known for use on Mayo stands, which
are supported along one edge of the table surface. Conven-
tional drapes are also known for covering a single-tiered
table surface.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

It is an object of the present invention to provide a sterile
drape for covering a two-tiered instrument table for use in an
operating room.

It is another object to provide a method for covering a
two-tiered table in an operating room.

It is a further object to provide a method or making a
sterile drape for covering a two-tiered instrument table for
use in an operating room.

It is an additional object to provide a method for making
such a drape in a one-piece embodiment.

It is yet another object to provide a method for making
such a drape in a two-piece embodiment.

These and other objects are achieved by the surgical drape
and methods of the present invention. The surgical drape is
adapted to cover the surfaces of a multiple-tiered instrument
table such as is typically used for holding surgical instru-
ments. Those drape sections for covering surfaces above the
bottom surface are fitted so as to avoid impeding access to
and visibility of those surfaces immediately beneath. Clear
sections of the drape are provided to extend between tiers for
improved visualization of the instruments from behind the
table. Cuffs are also provided for aiding handling by a sterile
nurse.

A method for making a surgical drape for covering
instrument multiple-ticred surfaces comprises the steps of
affixing a bottom drape portion to a bottom edge of a clear
middle section of flexible material, the clear middle section
affixed adjacent a rear edge of the bottom drape portion. A
top edge of the clear middle section is affixed adjacent a
front edge of an upper drape portion. Both side edges of the
clear middle section are affixed to the corresponding side
edges of the upper drape portion at a location in spaced
relation from the front edge commensurate with the width of
the surface to be covered. Thus the upper portion of the clear
middle section forms a cover for the underneath portion of
the top tier. The upper portion of the clear middle section is
affixed to the undersection of the top tier of the instrument
table by hook-and-loop fastemers. From the side affixing
locations the clear section is free to extend between the
bottom and upper tier and permits visualization of the
bottom tier from behind the table while inhibiting contami-
nation by nonsterile personnel positioned there.
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It will be apparent to one skilled in the art that additional
steps similar to those recited above can be employed to
cover an instrument table having further surfaces. It will also
be apparent that, although this particular embodiment is
intended for use with tables having upper surfaces supported
from the rear, alternate drape designs would be encompassed
by the present invention for other instrument table types, and
limitations are not intended for this particular table.

A method of using such a surgical drape comprises the
steps of arraying the bottom drape section on the bottom
table surface desired to be covered, with the clear section
facing toward the rear. Next the upper drape section is lifted
up, which also brings the upper portion of the clear section
upward. The top portion of the clear middle section is
positioned under the top tier of the instrument table, and the
remaining portion of the clear section is arrayed along the
rear of the table for permitting visualization.

The features that characterize the invention, both as to
organization and method of operation, together with further
objects and advantages thereof, will be better understood
from the following description used in conjunction with the
accompanying drawing. It is to be expressly understood that
the drawing is for the purpose of illustration and description
and is not intended as a definition of the limits of the
invention. These and other objects attained, and advantages
offered, by the present invention will become more fully
apparent as the description that now follows is read in
conjunction with the accompanying drawing.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG. 1 is a perspective view of a surgical instrument table
covered with the surgical sterile drape.

FIG. 2 is an exploded view of the one-piece embodiment
of the surgical drape showing the attachment points of the
three sections.

REFERENCE NUMERALS IN DRAWINGS

10—two-tiered instrument table

12—bottom tier of instrument table

14—top tier of instrument table

16—table’s left support post for top tier

18—table’s right support post for top tier

100—one picce embodiment of entire drape for multiple-
tiered sterile hospital surfaces

200—entire bottom piece of drape

202—bottom piece of drape that conforms to instrument
table bottom tier

204—front part of bottom section of drape that creates a
bottom skirt hanging over the bottom front edge of
instrument table

206—left side of bottom section of drape that hangs over left
side of instrument table

208—right side of bottom section of drape that hangs over
left side of instrument table

212—rear edge of bottom section of drape which falls over
the back edge of the instrument table forming a protective
skirt.

214—bottom section of drape in front of the cutouts for the
table supports where the bottom portion of the drape is
affixed to the clear middle section.

216—cutout in rear edge of bottom section of drape to
accommodate left top tier table support

218—cutout in rear edge of bottom section of drape to
accommodate right top tier table support

300—<lear middle section of drape

302—top edge of clear middle section of drape
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304—bottom edge of clear middle section of drape

306—left side of clear middle section of drape

308—right side of clear middle section of drape

310—hook-and-loop fastener attached to clear middle sec-
tion of drape

312—hook-and-loop fastener attached to undersection of
top tier of instrument table

400—cntire top piece of drape

402—front edge of drape in the top tier section

404—the portion of top section of drape that overhangs back
of instrument table

406—left side of top section of drape

408—right side of top section of drape

410—cuffed flap areas on top section of drape used for
applying drape to instrument table

SUMMARY

In accordance with the present invention a sterile drape
for a multiple-tiered hospital instrument table is comprised
of a generally rectangular bottom sheet affixed to a clear
middle sheet which is affixed to a generally rectangular top
sheet and the means for continuous joining of said bottom,
middle, and top sheet in a one piece embodiment and the
means for applying said drape to a hospital instrument table.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE
PREFERRED EMBODIMENTS

A description of the preferred embodiments of the present
invention will now be presented with reference to FIGS. 1
and 2.

In a preferred embodiment the drape is for covering what
is known in the art as a surgical “back instrument table”,
which will be shown as a table 10 having a bottom tier 12
and an upper tier 14, the two tiers 12, 14 connected by two
rear posts 16, 18. The drape 100 is shown in place in FIG.
1 covering such a table 10.

Two embodiments of the present invention are provided:
a one piece 100 and a two piece drape. The drape 100 is
shown in exploded view in FIG. 2.

The bottom section 200 comprises a generally rectangular
sheet of liquid-impervious material such as are known for
use in the art. The liquid-impervious nature is important to
prevent any spillage or leakage from seeping through the
sheet, contacting the nonsterile, instrument table surface,
and wicking back up through the sheet, which then would be
contaminated. The bottom section 200 has a top surface 30
operable to cover the bottom tier 12 of the table 10 to define
a sterile lower tier surface 32. In a particular embodiment the
material comprises a plastic such as polyethylene, typically
colored blue for this application, although this is not
intended to be limiting. The sheet has a pair of cutouts
216,218 positioned along the rear edge 212 for admitting the
table posts 16,18. The rear part of the material surrounding
the cutouts 216,218 when in position on a table fall below
the bottom tier 12 surface. The width and depth of the
bottom section 200 are dimensioned for side and front
draping along the side 206,208 and front edges 204, respec-
tively.

Affixed atop the bottom section 200 is another rectangular
piece of flexible material, bonded to the bottom section 200
to form a laminate. This surface section 202 is dimensioned
generally to conform to the top of the bottom tier 12, is made
of a cloth-like material such as a non woven fabric having
a wood pulp base (c.g., Dexter®, made by DuPont).

A top section 400 also comprises a generally rectangular
sheet of liquid-impervious material, for example,
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polyethylene, again typically colored blue. The top section
400 is also laminated with a non woven cloth-like material
such as Dexter®. The rear edge 404 is turned upward and
affixed along the sides to form a top flap 410, which serves
as a cuff for assisting in placing the drape, as will be
described in the following. Upper tier 14 has an upper tier
surface (hidden by drape 100 in FIG. 1) and an opposed
underside surface (hidden in FIG. 1). As illustrated in FIG.
1, the upper tier 14 and its underside surface are disposed at
least partially above over the bottom tier 12. The upper tier
surface is covered by top section 400 to define a sterile upper
tier surface 40. Top section 400 also has a front edge 42.

A clear section 300 is affixed along its bottom edge 304
adjacent the bottom section’s back edge 214 just forward of
the cutouts 216,218. Clear section 300 is also affixed along
its top edge 302 to the top section’s front edge 402, and its
side edges 306,308 arc affixed to the corresponding side
edges 406,408 of the upper drape portion 400 commensurate
with the width W of the upper tier 14 (shown as darkened
strips on FIG.2). Thus the upper portion 302 of the clear
section 300 forms a flap for fitting to an upper tier 14 by
tucking thereunder.

Preferably the clear section 300 is also made of a liquid-
impervious material, such as, but not limited to,
polyethylene, which has sufficient translucence to permit
visualization of table surface there through.

In order to secure the flap onto the upper tier 14, further
affixing means are also provided. In a preferred embodiment
a piece 310 of one part of a hook-and-loop type fastener
(Velcro®) is affixed to a back side of the clear section 300
generally in line with the inward ends of the side-affixing
locations. This piece is for mating with a corresponding
piece 312 affixed beneath and generally adjacent the rear
edge of the top tier 14. When mated, the fastener pieces hold
the central part of the clear section up and out of the way of
the bottom tier 12.

The drape can be made in a two-piece embodiment,
wherein the bottom section 200 and the clear section 300 are
not affixed together, but merely abut each other; otherwise,
the sections are constructed substantially the same as for the
drape 100, with the clear section being longer to permit a
draping behind the bottom tier 12

The drape 100 as described above is made by forming the
three sections 200,300,400 from the appropriate materials
and affixing them together as shown in FIG. 2.

Operation

The drape 100 is used by removing it from a protective
covering, placing it in the center of the bottom tier of the
instrument table 12 and unfolding the drape 100 from the
middle to each side of the table 12 so that the sterile side of
the bottom section 200 is positioned upward. The exposed
front part of the drape 204 is then brought forward io cover
the front edge of the bottom tier 12. Moving to the rear of
the table 10 the remaining exposed drape is brought back so
that the cutouts 216,128 in the bottom section of drape 202

correspond to the posts 16,18 supporting the top tier 14. The -

drape will now have cuffed flap areas 410 exposed on both
ends. The upper drape section 400 is then raised up by a
person on either side of the instrument table 10 inserting
hands into the flap areas 410, lifting the drape and placing
upper drape section 400 on top tier of instrument table 14
with back overhang 404 draping over the rear portion of top
tier of instrument table 14. Lifting the upper drape section
400 also brings the upper portion of the clear section 300
upward. To finish applying drape 100 middle section of

Ry
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drape 300 is affixed up and away from the bottom piece of
drape 200 by means of hook-and-loop type fasteners 310,
312. The hook-and-loop fasteners on the back of the clear
middle section 310 are joined to their corresponding mates
312 on the underside of the top tier of the instrument table
14, and the remaining portion of the clear section 300 is
arrayed along the rear of the table.

It may be appreciated by one skilled in the art that
additional embodiments may be contemplated, including
additional drapes designed for surgical instrument tables
having multiple tiers and supports thereof.

CONCLUSIONS, RAMIFICATIONS, AND SCOPE

Accordingly the reader will see that the sterile drape for
the multiple-tiered hospital instrument table can be used to
quickly and conveniently create a sterile field. Furthermore,
the multiple-tiered drape has the additional advantages in
that

It permits the draping to be done by sterile or non-sterile
personnel.

It allows for instrument trays to be seen on both levels as
well as from the back of the table.

It provides a superior surface upon which multiple trays
can be placed.

It provides a custom fit to the surface it is covering so as

to keep the instrument trays in place.

Although the description above contains many
specificities, these should not be construed as limiting the
scope of the invention. Rather, as merely providing illustra-
tions of the presently preferred embodiments of this inven-
tion currently in use in over fifty hospital operating rooms in
the United States. Certain terms have been used for brevity,
clarity, and understanding, but no unnecessary limitations
are to be implied therefrom beyond the requirements of the
prior art, because such words are used for description
purposes herein and are intended to be broadly construed.
Moreover, the embodiments of the apparatus illustrated and
described herein are by way of example, and the scope of the
invention is not limited to the exact details of construction.

Thus the scope of the invention should be determined by
the appended claims and their legal equivalents, rather than
by the examples given.

I claim:

1. A drape for a table in an operating room, the table
having a lower tier and an upper tier, the lower tier having
a lower tier surface, the upper tier having an upper tier
surface and an opposed underside surface disposed at least
partially over the lower tier surface, the drape comprising:

a bottom sheet having a top surface operable to cover the

lower tier surface to define a sterile lower tier surface;

a top sheet having a front edge and operable to cover the

upper tier surface to define a sterile upper tier surface;

a middle sheet having a bottom edge and a top edge, the

bottom edge being attached to the top surface of the
bottom sheet and the top edge being attached to the
front edge of the top sheet for isolating the sterile lower
tier surface from the underside surface.

2. The drape of claim 1, further comprising a side edge of
the middle sheet being attached to a side edge of the top
sheet to form a flap operable to fit over at least a portion of
the upper tier.

3. The drape of claim 1, further comprising a means for
holding a central portion of the middle sheet away from the
sterile lower tier surface.

4. The drape of claim 1, further comprising a fastener
attached to a back surface of the middle sheet.

20

25

60

6

5. The drape of claim 1, wherein the fastener comprises a
hook and loop fastener.

6. The drape of claim 1, wherein the middle sheet com-
prises a clear material.

7. The drape of claim 1, further comprising a flap formed
on a rear portion of the top sheet.

8. The drape of claim 1, wherein the table has a post
between the upper tier and the lower tier, the drape further
comprising a cutout formed in a rear portion of the bottom
sheet and operable to fit around the post.

9. A drape for a table in an operating room, the table
having a lower tier and an upper tier, the lower tier having
a lower tier surface, the upper tier having an upper tier
surface and an opposed underside surface disposed at least
partially over the lower tier surface, the drape comprising:

a first sheet having a top surface operable to cover the
lower tier surface to define a sterile lower tier surface;

a second sheet having a top section having a front edge
and operable to cover the upper tier surface to define a
sterile upper tier surface;

the second sheet further having a middle section having a
bottom edge and a top edge, the bottom edge abutting
the top surface of the first sheet and the top edge being
attached to the front edge of the top section for isolating
the sterile lower tier surface from the underside surface.

10. The drape of claim 9, further comprising a side edge
of the middle section being attached to a side edge of the top
section to form a flap operable to fit over at least a portion
of the upper tier.

11. The drape of claim 9, further comprising a means for
holding a central portion of the middle section away from
the sterile lower tier surface.

12. The drape of claim 9, further comprising a fastener
attached to a back surface of the middle section.

13. The drape of claim 12, wherein the fastener comprises
a hook and loop fastener.

14. The drape of claim 9, wherein the middle section
comprises a clear material.

15. The drape of claim 9, further comprising a flap formed
on a rear portion of the second sheet.

16. The drape of claim 9, wherein the table has a post
between the upper tier and the lower tier, the drape further
comprising a cutout formed in a rear portion of the first sheet
and operable to fit around the post.

17. A draped table for an operating room, the draped table
comprising:

a table lower tier having a lower tier surface;

a table upper tier having an upper tier surface and an

opposed underside surface;

a structure connecting the table lower tier and the table
upper tier so that the underside surface is disposed at
least partially above the table lower tier surface;

a bottom sheet having a top surface disposed over the
lower tier surface to define a sterile lower tier surface;

a top sheet having a front edge and a top portion disposed
over the upper tier surface to define a sterile upper tier
surface;

the top sheet further having a middle portion having a
bottom edge and a top edge, the bottom edge abutting
the top surface of the bottom sheet and the top edge
being attached to the front edge of the top sheet for
isolating the sterile lower tier surface from the under-
side surface.

18. The draped table of claim 17, wherein the botiom edge

of the middle portion is attached to the top surface of the
bottom sheet.
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19. The draped table of claim 17, wherein the structure
comprises a post connecting a rear portion of the upper tier
and a rear portion of the lower tier, and further comprising
a cut out in a rear portion of the bottom sheet for admitting
the post, the post and the cutout being isolated from the
sterile lower tier surface by the middle portion.

20. The draped table of claim 17, further comprising a
side edge of the middle portion being attached to a side edge
of the top portion to form a flap operable to fit over at least
a portion of the upper tier.

21. The draped table of claim 17, further comprising a
means for holding a central portion of the middle portion
away [rom the sterile lower tier surface.

22. The draped table of claim 17, further comprising a
fastener attached to a back surface of the middle portion.

23. The draped table of claim 22, wherein the fastener
comprises a hook and loop fastener.

24. The draped table of claim 17, wherein the middle
portion comprises a clear material.

25. The draped table of claim 17, further comprising a flap
formed on a rear portion of the top sheet.

26. The draped table of claim 17, further comprising:

the structure further comprising a post connected between

the upper tier and the lower tier; and

a cutout formed in a rear portion of the bottom sheet

operable to fit around the posi.
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27. A drape for a table in an operating room, the table
having a lower tier and an upper tier, the lower tier having
a lower tier surface, the upper tier having an upper tier
surface and an opposed underside surface disposed at least
partially over the lower tier surface, the drape comprising:

a bottom tier area operable to cover the lower tier surface
to define a sterile lower tier surface;

a top tier area operable to cover the upper tier surface to
define a sterile upper tier surface;

a middle arca formed between a front portion of the top
tier area and a rear portion of the bottom tier area and
operable to isolate the sterile lower tier surface from the
underside surface; and

means for holding the middle area away from the sterile
lower tier surface.

28. The drape of claim 27, wherein the means for holding
further comprises a hook and loop fastener attached to the
middle area.

29. The drape of claim 27, wherein the means for holding
further comprises a fastener attached to the middle area.

30. The drape of claim 27, wherein the middle area
comprises a clear portion.
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